
NOTICE OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

 
A special meeting of the Committee of the Whole is scheduled for 

Tuesday, September 1, 2020 beginning at 6:45 p.m.   
  

A copy of the agenda for this meeting is attached hereto and can 
be found at www.tinleypark.org.  

  

  
NOTICE - MEETING MODIFICATION DUE TO COVID-19  

  

Pursuant to Governor Pritzker’s Executive Order 2020-07, Executive Order 2020-10, Executive 
Order 2020-18, Executive Order 2020-32, Executive Order 2020-33, Executive Order 2020-39, 
and Executive Order 2020-44, which collectively suspends the Illinois Open Meetings Act 
requirements regarding in-person attendance by members of a public body during the duration of 
the Gubernatorial Disaster Proclamation, issued on June 26, 2020, the members of the Committee 
of the Whole may be participating in the meeting through teleconference.   
  
A livestream of the electronic meeting will be broadcasted at Village Hall. Pursuant to  
Governor's Executive Order No. 2020-43 and CDC guidelines, no more than 50 people or 50% of 
the maximum capacity will be allowed in the Council Chambers at any one time, so long as 
attendees comply with social distancing guidelines. Anyone in excess of maximum limit will be 
asked to wait in another room with live feed to the meeting until the agenda item for which the 
person or persons would like to speak on is being discussed or until the open floor for public 
comments.  
   
Public comments or requests to speak may also be emailed in advance of the meeting to 
clerksoffice@tinleypark.org or placed in the Drop Box at the Village Hall by noon on Tuesday, 
September 1, 2020.    
  
Kristin A. Thirion  
Clerk  
Village of Tinley Park 

http://www.tinleypark.org/
http://www.tinleypark.org/


 
MEETING NOTICE 

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
 SPECIAL MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Special Committee of the Whole Meeting of the 
Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois will be held on Tuesday, September 1, 2020, 
beginning at 6:45 p.m. in Council Chambers, located in the Tinley Park Village Hall, 16250 South 
Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, Illinois 60477. 

 
The agenda is as follows: 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER. 
 

2. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL COMMITTEE OF 
THE WHOLE MEETING HELD ON AUGUST 18, 2020. 

 
3. DISCUSS BRIXMOR INCENTIVE AGREEMENT. 

 
4. DISCUSS PROCESS FOR AWARDING OF A BUSINESS LICENSE FOR ADULT 

USE CANNABIS FACILITIES. 
 

5. DISCUSS DEMOLITION REQUEST FOR 7050 171ST STREET. 
 

6. DISCUSS AMENDING TITLE III CHAPTER 31 SECTION 29 (31.029) OF THE 
TINLEY PARK MUNICIPAL CODE ENTITLED "VILLAGE CLERK AS VILLAGE 
COLLECTOR." 

 
7. DISCUSS LOBBYIST CONTRACT. 

 
8. DISCUSS SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY. 

 
9. DISCUSS VILLAGE RESOURCES AND COMMUNICATION CHANNELS. 

 
10. DISCUSS LED STREETLIGHTING REPLACEMENT PROJECT: 

a. LED STREETLIGHTING 159TH ST. REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
b. LED STREETLIGHTING REPLACEMENT - PHASE 4, 4A & 4B PROJECT 
 

11. RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC. 
 
 
 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT  
 

KRISTIN A. THIRION 
VILLAGE CLERK  



 

MINUTES 
Special Meeting of the Committee of the Whole 

August 18, 2020 – 6:45 p.m. 
Village Hall of Tinley Park – Council Chambers 

16250 S. Oak Park Avenue 
Tinley Park, IL 60477 

 

President Pro Tem Glotz called the special meeting of the Committee of the Whole on August 18, 2020, 
to order at 7:02 p.m.  
 
At this time, President Pro Tem Glotz stated this meeting was conducted remotely via electronic 
participation consistent with Governor Pritzker’s Executive Orders suspending certain requirements of the 
Open Meetings Act provisions relating to in-person attendance by members of a public body due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic. President Pro-Tem Glotz introduced ground rules for effective and clear conduct of 
Village business. Elected officials confirmed they were able to hear one another. 
 
Clerk Thirion called the roll. Present and responding to roll call were the following: 
 
 

Members Present:  M. Glotz, Village President Pro Tem  
    K. Thirion, Village Clerk 
    C. Berg, Village Trustee (Participated Electronically) 
    W. Brady, Village Trustee 
    W. Brennan, Village Trustee 
    D. Galante, Village Trustee 
    M. Mueller, Village Trustee 
     
Members Absent:  J. Vandenberg, Village President 
   
 

Staff Present:   D. Niemeyer, Village Manager 
    P. Carr, Assistant Village Manager  
    L. Godette, Deputy Clerk 
    B. Bettenhausen, Village Treasurer 
    A. Brown, Assistant Village Treasurer 
    H. Lipman, Management Analyst  
    D. Framke, Marketing Director 
    J. Urbanski, Interim Public Works Director 
    P. Connelly, Village Attorney 
    K. Clarke, Community Development Director 
          

Others Present:    
 
 

Item #2 - CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL COMMITTEE OF 
THE WHOLE MEETING HELD ON AUGUST 4, 2020 – Motion was made by President Pro Tem 
Glotz, seconded by Trustee Galante, to approve the minutes of the Special Committee of the Whole 
meeting held on August 4, 2020. Vote by roll call. Ayes: Berg, Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. 
Nays: None. Absent: None. President Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion carried. 
   
Item #3 – DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING LIQUOR LICENSES: a. CLASS E LIQUOR LICENSE 
FOR FRY THE COOP LOCATED AT 16703 HARLEM AVENUE; AND b. CLASS AV LIQUOR 
LICENSE FOR BURRITO JALISCO LOCATED AT 7547 159th STREET – Hannah Lipman, 



 

Page 2 of 8 
 

Management Analyst presented the liquor license requests. The petitioner, Joe Fontana (Founder and 
Owner of Fry the Coop) has approached the Liquor Commissioner seeking a Class E Liquor License for 
his restaurant that will be opening soon. Fry the Coop features Nashville Hot Chicken and has seen much 
success in its five (5) other locations which include Oak Lawn, Elmhurst, Prospect Heights, Chicago’s 
Loop, and Chicago’s West Town. The establishment has been featured on WGN’s Chicago Best, ABC’s 
Hungry Hound, WGN’s Lunch Break, ABC’s Windy City Live, FOX’s Good Day Chicago, USA Today, 
Chicago Sun-Times and Chicago Tribune. As a restaurant, Fry the Coop values their role in the 
community and works hard to build valuable relationships with its people and other businesses. 
 
Trustee Brennan is looking forward to the opening. Trustees Mueller, Glotz, and Galante concurred. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Brady, seconded by Trustee Brennan, to recommend the Class E Liquor 
License for Fry the Coop located at 16703 Harlem Avenue, be forwarded to the Village Board for 
approval. Vote by roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Abstain: Berg. 
Absent: None. President Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion carried. 
 
The petitioner, Burrito Jalisco, has approached the Liquor Commissioner seeking a Class AV 
Liquor License to add video gaming. The establishment currently has a Class A Liquor License which 
allows for the sale of alcoholic liquor. Burrito Jalisco has been in Tinley Park for over 18 years, but 
with the challenges restaurants have faced, would like to add video gaming as an additional revenue 
source. A sketch of where the terminals will be located was presented. The petitioner is proposing a seven 
(7) foot separation wall to align with the requirements of the Board. The petitioner has already sought 
approval from the Illinois Gaming Board, and would only need local approval to move forward. 
 
Trustee Mueller asked if the bar was full time and if the restaurant provided servers. The petitioner 
responded the bar is not full time and the restaurant is sit-down style with servers provided. 
 
Trustee Glotz stated he was pleased the petitioner provided for the 7-foot wall prior to the meeting. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Brady, seconded by Trustee Brennan, to recommend the Class AV Liquor 
License for Burrito Jalisco located at 7547 159th Street, be forwarded to the Village Board for approval. 
Vote by roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Abstain: Berg. Absent: 
None. President Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #4 – DISCUSS OAK PARK AVENUE FAÇADE GRANT FOR J.W. HOLLSTEIN’S 
SALOON, 17358 OAK PARK AVENUE – Kimberly Clarke, Community Development Director, 
presented the façade grant. Robert Barker (Applicant) and sole business owner of J.W. Hollstein’s Saloon 
is an entrepreneur who has operated Hollstein’s located at 17358 S. Oak Park Avenue since 2012. The 
site itself has been operating as a bar and restaurant in Tinley Park for 140 years. The applicant has 
submitted a façade grant application to replace the existing deteriorating wood fence surrounding the rear 
outdoor patio with a new cedar fence.  
 
The intent of the Façade Improvement Grant Program is to assist owners and tenants of existing buildings 
in upgrading their building facades by improving their overall appearance. Under the Façade Grant, 
replacement of decorative elements including outdoor dining elements are eligible expenses. The program 
provides a matching grant of 50% or a maximum of $35,000 per tax-paying business. One site can use up 
to $70,000 in matching grants every three years. 
 
The applicant submitted two proposals for each grant requested. Proposal amounts are as follows: 
 

Façade Grant 



 

Page 3 of 8 
 

Scope of Work J.P. Custom Carpentry, Inc. The Fence Guys 
Replace fence $21,800 $6,790 

 
The applicant is requesting a $10,900 Facade Grant to replace the fence surrounding the outdoor patio at 
17358 S. Oak Park Avenue (PIN: 28-30-313-007-0000). He has chosen to work with J.P. Custom 
carpentry, Inc. as they have done extensive work at the existing location including the construction of the 
patio bar. The quote for J.P. Custom Carpentry includes cedar wood which is three times the cost of 
treated wood according to the applicant and hence more expensive than The Fence Guys’ quote. The 
Fence Guys’ quote does not include the painting of the fence. 
 
The Economic Commercial Commission (ECC) reviewed the application at the August 10, 2020 meeting 
and unanimously voted to recommend the approval of a matching Façade Grant in the amount of $10,900 
to Robert Barker for replacement of the outdoor patio fence at 17358 S. Oak Park Avenue.  
 
Trustee Mueller stated the petitioner was at the ECC meeting to answer questions. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brennan, to recommend Oak Park Avenue 
Façade Grant for J.W. Hollstein’s Saloon, 17358 Oak Park Avenue, be forwarded to the Village Board for 
approval. Vote by roll call. Ayes: Berg, Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: 
None. President Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #5 – DISCUSS CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH GOVTEMPSUSA, LLC FOR PLANNING 
MANAGER – Ms. Clarke presented the GovTempsUSA contract. The Village has a contract with 
GovTempsUSA to fill the Planning Manager role in the Community Development department. This 
contract will expire on September 4th, 2020. A renewal of this contract with updated terms to reflect the 
new hours, being 24 hours per week. The total base compensation paid is $77.49 per hour with $55.35 
being paid to the contract employee. 
 
Paula Wallrich has been a valuable resource to the Community Development Department. The goal in the 
near future will be to hire another full-time planner however this year’s budget did not provide the 
necessary resources. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brady, to recommend contract renewal with 
GovTempsUSA, LLC for Planning Manager, be forwarded to the Village Board for approval. Vote by roll 
call. Ayes: Berg, Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Pro Tem 
Glotz declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #6 – DISCUSS POTENTIALLY COMBINING COMMUNITY RESOURCES 
COMMISSION AND MARKETING COMMISSION – Donna Framke, Marketing Director, presented 
the proposal. The Village currently has two commissions that work closely with the marketing 
department. The Community Resources Commission was created in 1974. The commission’s purpose 
statement is to "educate the citizenry of the present available community services, to provide information 
about and promote local agencies, social services and emergency services, and to sanction and implement 
these services as needs are identified with in the community, and as directed by the Board of Trustees. 
This Commission shall be active in the planning and implementation of activities and events which 
educate, inform and promote community involvement, as well as those which promote the mental, 
physical and social health of the community, as deemed to fall under the Community Resources 
Commission by the Village Board and the Commission itself”. Recent projects include TV studio 
coordination/support, Youth in Government program, Scholarship program, Discover Tinley business 
expo, and Santa’s arrival. The eight existing members of this commission, who have been serving 



 

Page 4 of 8 
 

together for several years, have been advocating for bringing in new commissioners so they are able to 
share their knowledge and pass the baton. 
 
The Marketing and Branding Commission's purpose statement is "to encourage, assist, inform and make 
recommendations to the Village Board and staff on matters pertaining to the marketing of Tinley Park to 
its current and prospective residents, businesses and tourists/visitors. In addition, it is the policy of this 
village to assist in increasing the local tax base and improving the quality of life in Tinley Park by 
supporting and expanding the village’s music brand through the arts, culture and events held within the 
Village of Tinley Park”. This commission was created in 2017 and currently has 11 members, several of 
which were active in the creation and development of the Life Amplified brand. Recent projects include 
advancing the Life Amplified brand, providing input on Harmony Square and the Village’s wayfinding 
program, and supporting Downtown Tinley events and the Benches on the Avenue program. 
 
Goal E of the Village’s strategic plan is to Improve Community Engagement and Tourism. Strategies to 
accomplish this include: 
1. Expand community engagement efforts. 
2. Grow existing customer service platforms to address resident and stakeholder needs. 
3. Expand Village tourism infrastructure. 
4. Recruit entertainment and tourism-related businesses. 
5. Connect Village green spaces and gathering areas to enhance walkability and pedestrian access. 
6. Engage the Tinley Park business community to support tourism and branding initiatives. 
7. Develop Harmony Square as a regional destination and “third place” for residents and visitors 
 
The proposed restructuring would combine both commissions into a Village of Tinley Park Marketing 
Commission with the purpose of supporting the Village’s current goals and objectives. The commission 
would have three subcommittees that would: 
 
1. Support Tinley Park activities and events. This would include 

• Providing input on and support for Tinley Park events 
• Develop a structured community-wide volunteer program that would support large events in the 

Plaza and the impending Harmony Square 
• Develop a Junior volunteer corps to provide opportunities for Tinley Park youth to get involved 

in their community 
 

2. Support the Village’s tourism initiatives and advance the Life Amplified brand by 
• Identifying opportunities to engage Tinley Park's existing businesses and organizations in 

support of the brand 
• Recommending strategies for building brand awareness, and 
• Identifying opportunities to promote the brand 
 

3. Support the Village’s community involvement and engagement strategies by 
• Overseeing the Tinley Park TV studio and continuing the structure whereby students with 

aptitude and interest in video production are given opportunities to learn camerawork and video 
editing and producing the Discover Tinley show and the Chamber Spotlight show 

• Provide ideas for engaging the community through social media and other outreach activities, 
and  

• Coordinating details related to and awarding the Reta Brudd scholarship program supporting 
Tinley Park students that have taken an active role in providing service to the community. 

 
Trustee Brennan feels combining the commission’s is a good idea. Trustee Mueller concurs. 
 



 

Page 5 of 8 
 

Motion was made by Trustee Berg, seconded by Trustee Glotz, to recommend combining the Community 
Resources Commission and the Marketing Commission, be forwarded to the Village Board for approval. 
Vote by roll call. Ayes: Berg, Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: None. 
President Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #7 – RECEIVE UPDATE ON THE FISCAL YEAR 2021 BUDGET – Andrew Brown, Assistant 
Village Treasurer, presented the update. The first impacts of the Coronavirus pandemic and the Stay at 
Home Order are reflected in April, primarily in the locally operated Commuter Parking Lot Fund where 
not only were permit and daily parking fees waived, but the use of the lots was virtually non-existent. 
With the imposition of the Stay at Home Order, there was a significant reduction in the reporting of Video 
Gaming revenues for March (reported in April). 
 
In May, the impacts of the suspension of the economy in response to the pandemic through reduced State 
income tax distributions, zero video gaming, and reduced motor fuel taxes were seen. While insignificant 
in overall amount, our Cannabis Use Tax distribution was also half of the preceding month and 
attributable to the economic shutdown. 
 
The current month report (June), includes the first impacts on the Village’s retail community because of 
the Stay at Home Order (“The Shutdown”) that went into effect mid-March. 
 
Reporting that reflects a short recap of the monthly and cumulative impacts to key revenues and operating 
funds of the Village was presented. As of the end of June, these key items are down slightly less than $1.8 
million since March 2020. 
 
Year over year revenues that have been impacted negatively are down about $3.6 million. This is less 
than the initial projection of $14 million. However, the Finance Department’s recommendation is to not 
reconsider expenditures at this time. 
 
Use tax is the sales tax collected on out-of-state purchases shipped to Illinois (internet sales) and 
merchandise used by retailers where sales tax had not previously been paid. There was an increase to the 
Use Tax distribution.  
 
Trustee Berg asked how much revenues are down. Mr. Brown explained year over year revenue is down 
$3.6 million, however, Use Tax is up approximately $133,000, and the Motor Transportation Renewal 
Fund is up approximately $121,000. In total, revenues are down approximately $3.1 million overall, 
through the month of August. 
 
Trustee Mueller asked about the Cannabis Tax received. Mr. Brown and Brad Bettenhausen, Village 
Treasurer, explained the Cannabis Tax received is revenue from the State that is distributed to all 
communities on a per capita basis, regardless of their position on adult cannabis use. It is earmarked for 
drug enforcement type activities. 
 
Item #8 – DISCUSS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) WITH COOK COUNTY 
FOR CORONAVIRUS AID AND ECONOMIC SECURITY (CARES) ACT FUNDING –Mr. 
Brown presented the CARES IGA. On March 27th, 2020 the federal government passed the Coronavirus 
Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act or “CARES Act” to provide fast and direct economic assistance 
for American workers, families, and small businesses to preserve jobs for American industries. The 
CARES Act provided over $2 trillion in economic relief to protect Americans from public health and 
economic impacts. 
 



 

Page 6 of 8 
 

As part of the Act, Congress earmarked $150 billion to assist state, local, and tribal governments. The 
Village of Tinley Park is ineligible for direct distribution of CARES Act funds because the Village 
population is below the 500,000-person threshold. The Village is eligible to receive funds through 
the State of Illinois and Cook and/or Will County. 
 
The Village of Tinley Park was notified that the County of Cook has received about $429 million from 
the US Treasury in CARES Act funding and will designate $51 million to support municipalities under 
the 500,000-population threshold. The County of Cook determined allocations to each municipality 
through an equitable lens, with factors that included, but not limited to; immediate needs of the 
municipality to respond to the pandemic, municipal population, municipal median income, and municipal 
public health statistics. Each municipality must apply for this funding allocation and such allocation will 
be contingent on eligible cost reimbursement. 
 
Through the allocation process, the Village of Tinley Park has been awarded up to $383,275.56 for 
reimbursement of eligible COVID 19 costs. The attached IGA is required by Cook County of all 
municipalities which intend to seek the use of their allocation amount. The Village is also required to 
submit a letter of intent and application to accompany the IGA. 
 
Trustee Brennan asked Mr. Brown to explain how the amount awarded was calculated. The initial amount 
was approximately $5.90 per person, per community. The Village amount was reduced by 13% based on 
US Census population returns reflecting Tinley Park’s Will County population. The amount was further 
reduced based on the number of COVID deaths as well as the use of the equitable lens. 
 
Mr. Brown added, the Village received an award from Will County totaling approximately $306,000. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Galante, seconded by Trustee Mueller, to recommend Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) with Cook County for Coronavirus Aid and Economic Security (CARES) Act Funding, 
be forwarded to the Village Board for approval. Vote by roll call. Ayes: Berg, Brady, Brennan, Galante, 
Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion carried. 
 
 
Item #9 – DISCUSS WATER ASSESSMENT PROGRAM CONTRACT RENEWAL – John 
Urbanski, Interim Public Works Director, presented the contract renewal. The Village sought a qualified 
contractor to conduct a water assessment of our water system which includes the following services: 
 
Fire Hydrant Maintenance: operate and inspect a portion of our hydrants in our water system 
for problems. 

• Inspections are performed on 1,150, roughly one-third, of the Village’s hydrants. 
 

Fire Hydrant Flow Testing: check pressure and volume of water flowing from hydrant. 
• Full flow operation on one-fifth, approximately 700 hydrants, to ensure the water main 
capacity is in accordance with ISO, NFPA, and AWWA requirements. 

 
Water System Leak Survey: detecting non-visible leaks in our water system. 

• Use instrumentation on water valves, hydrants, and water services to listen for leaks. If 
leaks are found, use leak correlation machine to pinpoint leaks. Approximately 130 miles 
of water main is surveyed each year for leaks. 
 

Valve Exercising: operate and inspect a portion of valves in our water system for problems. 
• Locate, operate, and inspect 1,025 or one-third of the Village’s water valves each year. 
 



 

Page 7 of 8 
 

Request for Qualifications (RFQ) were received in FY2019 with the contract awarded to M.E. Simpson. 
The contract was written to be renewable for four years. FY2021 will be the second contract renewal. 
 
Funding in the amount of $149,300 is available in the approved FY2021 Budget. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Brady, to recommend Water Assessment 
Program Contract renewal, be forwarded to the Village Board for approval. Vote by roll call. Ayes: Berg, 
Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Pro Tem Glotz declared 
the motion carried. 
 
Item #10 – DISCUSS ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY (IEPA) MS4 
(MUNICIPAL SEPARATE STORM SEWER SYSTEM) PERMIT – GENERAL STORM WATER 
– Mr. Urbanski presented the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) MS4 Program Update. 
The current reporting period for the Village’s General Storm Water Permit for Small Municipal Separate 
Storm Sewer Systems (MS4) began in March 2019 and extends to March 2021. The Village began the 
MS4 Program in April 2017 and the current IEPA ILR40 General Permit is set to expire on February 28, 
2021, at which time the IEPA will update the required objectives of the permit. 
 
The Village Stormwater Management Program has implemented most of the tasks outlined in the current 
IEPA National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit Program which is designed to 
reduce the discharge of pollutants from our storm sewer system to the maximum extent possible to our 
rivers and streams. 
 
The Village’s Best Management Practices (BMP’s) are requirements set and required to be followed by 
all new developments and re-development of existing sites. This program requires the Village to outline 
its BMP control measures, measure, and report them annually. These tasks include the following: 
 

• Public Education and Outreach: 
• The Village website provides information/links to articles related to water quality. 

 
• Public Participation and Involvement: 

• Annual Spring Clean-Up Day 
 

• Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination: 
• Annual storm Water Management Facility Inspections 

 
• Construction and Post-Construction Site Runoff Control: 

• Enforcement of the Village’s Erosion and Sediment Control Ordinance 
 

• Pollution Prevention and Good Housekeeping: 
• Staff Training 
• Inspection and Maintenance Program 

 
 
Item #11 – DISCUSS RED-LIGHT CAMERA PROGRAM – Pat Carr, Assistant Village Manager, 
presented the Red-Light Camera Program update. In February 2020 discussions began regarding the 
possible termination of the program. Discussions with the Village attorney’s regarding contract 
ramifications continued over the next several months. The current contract expires in December 2020.  
 



 

Page 8 of 8 
 

Trustee Glotz feels a letter should be sent indicating termination at the contract end. Trustees Brennan and 
Mueller concur. Pat Connelly, Village Attorney, stated this can be done, and due to the short amount of 
time left on the contract, allowing the contract to run out may best option.  
  
Trustee Glotz asked the attorney, Public Works and Commander Tencza to work together to see about 
keeping the electricity for future uses.  
 
Trustee Berg agrees the red-light cameras should be removed, but questioned how to replace the lost 
revenue. Trustee Galante concurs. 
 
Trustee Brady asked how much revenue the program creates. Mr. Carr responded approximately 
$600,000. Mr. Bettenhausen added this revenue helps fund the Pavement Management Program. Trustee 
Galante asked if the Push Tax discussed in the past could replace this revenue. Mr. Niemeyer responded 
that the item could be added to a future agenda, however, there may be upcoming State legislation that 
would nullify this action. 
 
Item #12 – RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC –  
President Pro Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public wished to comment. No one came forward. 
 
President Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any written comments or requests to speak telephonically 
from members of the public. Laura Godette, Deputy Village Clerk, stated there were none. 
 
Motion was made by President Pro Tem Glotz, seconded by Trustee Muller, to adjourn the Committee of 
the Whole. Vote by roll call. Ayes: Berg, Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: 
None. President Pro Tem Glotz declared the meeting adjourned at 7:51 p.m. 
 
 
 
dm 



                                             
Finance Department Memorandum 
To: Village Board 

From: Brad Bettenhausen, Treasurer 

Date: 24 August 2020 

Re: Tinley Park Plaza redevelopment incentive request – Brixmor IA Tinley Park Plaza LLC 

 
Accompanying this memo, for your consideration, is Resolution 2020-R-085 containing the 
Redevelopment Agreement between Brixmor IA Tinley Park Plaza, LLC (Brixmor) and the 
Village related to proposed renovations to the Tinley Park Plaza shopping center on the east 
side of Harlem Avenue south of 159th Street (15903-16205 Harlem).  The small retail center 
immediately at the southeast corner of 159th and Harlem (15901 Harlem) is not part of this 
shopping center. 
 
Proposed Incentive 
Brixmor has proposed renovations and upgrades to the Tinley Park Plaza shopping center at an 
estimated total cost of $21.9 million.  The project is further detailed later in this memo.  “But 
for” the Village’s assistance toward the project, the renovations would not be able to move 
forward and current tenant interest in locating in the center would be lost and the shopping 
center would be adversely impacted. 
 
The Village has offered financial assistance in an amount not to exceed $9.9 million, or 50% of 
the actual project costs, whichever is lower.  This assistance will be funded by a combination of 
TIF incremental revenues generated by the shopping center properties alone, and incremental 
municipal sales taxes (1%) generated by all the businesses located in the shopping center over a 
ten (10) year period.  A maximum of $8.1 million of TIF eligible costs are to be paid from the TIF 
increment generated, with the remainder ($1.8 million) to be paid from incremental sales taxes.  
The portion of the incentive to be funded between the TIF eligible costs and sales tax can 
fluctuate based on actual expenses, but in addition to the overall $9.9 million cap on the 
financial assistance noted earlier, the amount that can be provided from the incremental 
municipal sales tax component cannot exceed $2.5 million.   
 
Under long established fiscal policies regarding incentives, the Village does not look to share 
sales taxes it may be already receiving.  In business expansion and redevelopment agreements 
such as this, we have always looked to share a portion of the increased (incremental) taxes that 
are expected to result.  Following these principles, incremental sales taxes are computed in 
reference to a base using the 1% municipal sales taxes generated collectively by the shopping 
center retailers during calendar 2019.      If a retailer currently located elsewhere in Tinley Park 
relocates to the Tinley Park Plaza during the term of the agreement, the sales taxes they 
generated over a preceding twelve (12) month period will be added to the base.  However, in 



the incentive year where a Tinley business has first relocated, the amount attributable to the 
base will be pro-rated based on how many months of that incentive year the business was 
operating in the Tinley Park Plaza (this compares their sales taxes after locating in the center 
with a comparable base for the “short” period of less than one year).  
 
As with most of the Village’s incentive agreements, the burden is heavily on the developers to 
achieve the maximum amount of the incentive.  If the property or sales tax increments do not 
materialize at the levels anticipated to fulfill the total support offered, it directly affects the 
amount of assistance that will be provided over the ten-year period of the agreement.  
Conversely, if the project is successful in attracting new retail to the center, as is anticipated, it is 
also possible for the agreement to be fulfilled in less than the ten years provided under the 
agreement. 
 
Encapsulated History of the Tinley Park Plaza Shopping Center 
The Tinley Park Plaza shopping center (15903-16205 Harlem Avenue) began development in 
approximately 1974, and was expanded circa 1984-1988 which added Walt’s Food Store and 
Builders Square as primary anchors.  Façade and other site improvements to the center were 
undertaken in 1992.  Although there have been several mergers, acquisitions, and related name 
changes, the shopping center has been beneficially owned by the Brixmor Property Group 
(specifically Brixmor IA Tinley Park Plaza LLC) since 1995.  The south end of the plaza was 
renovated circa 2003-2006 with a primary focus on redeveloping space which had been 
previously occupied by Builders Square (~1988-1999) which anchored the south end of the 
center following the termination of the lease by Kmart Corporation.  This renovation resulted in 
the addition of a new free-standing outlot building set closer to Harlem Avenue (16205 Harlem) 
as well as newly designed tenant spaces (currently The Tile Shop through Dollar Tree).  In 2015-
2016, an additional free-standing building was constructed at the north end of the center (15903-
15915 Harlem), generally mirroring the building at the opposite end of the center.  A portion of 
the in-line retail spaces was demolished and reconfigured as additional parking.  The currently 
proposed renovations are expected to revitalize the shopping center for years to come. 

Current Shopping Center status 
There is currently approximately 251,500 square feet in this retail center including the two free-
standing outlot buildings.  Of this, approximately 230,000 square feet lies in the in-line center 
along the eastern side of the property.  Placing the storefronts in a continuous row set back 
away from the road, with the field of parking in front, was the typical configuration for 
shopping centers at the time this plaza was developed.  Within the main in-line building, 
approximately 83,000 square feet (over 36%) is currently vacant.  Some of this vacancy has 
resulted from companies who have ceased operations or have relocated.  In the process, the 
plaza has lost some of its prior anchor tenants.  The owners are aware of certain existing leases 
that are not expected to be renewed which would add to the vacancies.  Brixmor has found 
success in leasing the newer renovated spaces, but finds that the older spaces are becoming 
increasingly difficult to fill, particularly in light of the changing needs and demands of “brick 
and mortar” retailers.  The vacancies offer additional challenges in their marketing efforts. 

Proposed Improvements 
Brixmor representatives contacted the Village approximately a year ago with an ambitious 
phased renovation plan intended to update and breathe new life into the shopping center.  They 
were envisioning creating a potential dining and entertainment destination, and was seeking 



Village financial assistance to move the plan forward.  Their initial assistance request had 
sought a significant sharing of sales taxes generated by the shopping center, which has been a 
common tool used by the Village (and other municipalities) to support new development and 
redevelopment alike with a goal toward increased sales tax revenues, employment 
opportunities, and reducing the government’s reliance on property taxes.  However, the 
amount of the request, and the proposed structure of the sharing request far exceeded the 
Village’s established fiscal policies that have been developed and adopted by the Board over the 
past four decades.  When the Village’s policies were applied to the request, the amount of 
potential support that could be provided was far less than their request and need. 

In the subsequent months, the has Village explored and approved the creation of the 159th and 
Harlem TIF (Tax Increment Financing) District.  The new TIF is expected to add options for 
providing financial assistance within the boundaries of this commercial TIF which includes 
significant retail spaces at the crossroads of the two heavily traveled highways that are 
referenced in the naming of the TIF.  In the planning process for the TIF, the Village has also 
identified several public improvements that can enhance esthetics and accessibility to these 
commercial areas by pedestrians and vehicles alike, as well as replacement of aging 
infrastructure which serve this commercial corridor.   

While the COVID-19 pandemic significantly altered the owner’s earlier vision of creating a 
dining and entertainment destination, they have been successful in getting two retailers under 
contract that intend to occupy approximately 63,500 square feet of retail space.  Both retailers 
have established stringent requirements for the delivery of the renovated space and Brixmor 
has  been working diligently to be able to meet those deadlines.  The initial phase of the project 
entails demolition of approximately 87,000 square feet of the in-line center and construction of 
new retail spaces to accommodate the retailers under contract, as well as others yet to be 
determined. 

The center’s long-time grocery store tenant will be vacating its 39,000 square foot space before 
the end of 2021 by their own choosing.  The next phase of renovations include redevelopment of 
that vacated space and adjacent building area, to create new tenant spaces.  The remaining 
phase of the redevelopment will include improvements to the north end of the in-line center.  
The planned project will bifurcate the current in-line center into two separate buildings.  This 
will provide improved and more efficient access to the rear of the center for loading docks and 
service entrances essential for deliveries to the tenants.  The tenants currently under contract to 
occupy the renovated space, along with the enhanced retail spaces to be created, are expected to 
create a synergy that should aid in drawing other retailers to establish locations in the center, 
reducing the vacancy levels and increasing customer traffic which would be expected to 
provide long term benefits to the retailers, Brixmor, and the Village. 

If recommended for approval, this Resolution would be placed for first reading on the 1 
September agenda with final approval on 15 September.  Should you have any questions 
regarding this agreement or the planned renovations, please do not hesitate to contact. 



 

 

 

Date: September 1, 2020 

To: Village Board  

From: Dave Niemeyer, Village Manager 
 Kimberly Clarke, Community Development Director 

Hannah Lipman, Management Analyst 
 
Subject: Adult Use Cannabis – Business License Selection Discussion 

 
In August 2020, the Village Board approved an Ordinance Amending the Tinley Park Zoning 
Ordinance for the Purpose of Regulating Adult-Use Cannabis Business Establishments (2020-O-038). 
Per this Ordinance, there is only one (1) adult-use cannabis license available, it will be permitted as a 
Special Use in B-2 & B-3 Zoning Districts, it will be permitted only along Harlem Avenue, LaGrange 
Road, and/or 159th Street, and it will only be permitted in a standalone building. Ordinance 2020-O-
040 was also passed, establishing a business license for an Adult-Use Cannabis Facility.  

The Village has been in contact with several individuals/companies who are interested in opening a 
dispensary in town. As there is only one (1) license available, staff has begun to consider what the 
process for awarding the license may consist of, but would like the Board’s input before moving 
forward.  

One approach is to utilize a lottery system. Minimum criteria would be developed to determine 
eligibility to participate, and an appeals process would also need to be created as well.  

Another approach could be more of a merit-based system. Staff could share minimum criteria and 
request business license applications be turned in with a business plan, which displays that 
businesses ability to meet the criteria.  

General criteria to be considered may include: 
• Proven experience (other locations); 
• Security plan; 
•  Whether or not a license has already been obtained from the State (or if in the process of 

obtaining a license); 
• Local presence (Chicagoland area); and 
• Past convictions, outstanding fees to any public agency, etc. 

Staff is seeking direction on the Board’s preferred approach, and if there is any additional 
application criteria worth considering.  

Interoffice   
Memo 
 













 

 
 
 
Date: August 28, 2020 
 
To: Village Board 
   
From: Kristin Thirion, Village Clerk 
 
Subject: Amendment to Clerk/Collector Office 
  
 
In the early days of Tinley Park, the small size of the community necessitated a degree of overlap 
in the duties of the Clerk’s office.  In additional to being the Keeper of the Records, the Village 
Clerk also served as Village Collector.  Title III, Chapter 31, Section 29 of the Village Municipal 
Code describes this role and calls for additional funds to augment the Clerk’s salary for the 
oversight of financial functions such as the collection of licensing, vehicle sticker, and parking 
fees. Ordinance 84-0-070 specifically provided for this compensation when it passed on 
December 18th, 1984.   
 
In the Staffing Level Study conducted in June of 2017 by the Matrix Consulting Group, it was 
recommended that the “Village transfer financial functions performed by the Village Clerk to the 
Treasurer’s Office (page 31).”   
 
In addition to ending weekend service and eliminating a Commission Secretary position, the 
Clerk’s Office subsequently effected a complete transferal of all staff conducting financial 
functions to the Treasurer’s Office last year. 
 
It is my understanding that the salaries of elected officials cannot be changed while in office.  I 
am, therefore, recommending that the Village draft an ordinance to take effect on May 1st, 2021 
that would eliminate the Clerk/Collector office from the Code of Ordinances and eliminate the 
additional pay received by the Clerk for Collector’s duties.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Interoffice   

Memo 



 

 
 
 
Date: August 28, 2020  
 
To: Committee of the Whole  
   
From: David Niemeyer, Village Manager 
 
Subject: Village Lobbyist 
 
 
We need to renew the annual retainer agreement (attached) with the Village Lobbyist the Rory 
Group.  Tom Manion and Lucy Anderson have been working with the Village since June 1, 2019 
on State issues including the Tinley Park Mental Health Center and County issues including 
helping us get $600,000 in grants to help reconstruct County roads. 
 
The fees would remain the same, which is $3000 per month. 
 
At the September 15, 2020 Village Board meeting we will be asking the Board to renew this 
contract for a year retroactive to June 2020 through June 2021. 
  
 
 

Interoffice   

Memo 



 
 

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
Cook County, Illinois  
Will County, Illinois 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 
NO. 2020-R-087 

 

 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND RORY GROUP, LLC 

 

 
 

JACOB C. VANDENBERG, PRESIDENT 
KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK 

 
CYNTHIA A. BERG 

WILLIAM P. BRADY 
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN 

DIANE M. GALANTE 
MICHAEL W. GLOTZ 

MICHAEL G. MUELLER 
Board of Trustees 

 
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park 

Peterson, Johnson, & Murray Chicago, LLC, Village Attorneys 
200 W. Adams, Suite 2125 Chicago, IL 60606 

  
  



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-R-087 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND RORY GROUP, LLC 
 

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 
provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, 
and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 
25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article 
VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, 
including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park (“Village” ) and Rory Group, LLC (“Rory Group”) 
have negotiated a Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) in which Rory Group will 
consult and advise the Village on legislative matters related to public works, transportation, 
infrastructure, water resources, housing, and grant programs among other various topics; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will 

Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of said Village of Tinley Park and 
its residents to enter into this Agreement with Rory Group; and  

   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, 
ILLINOIS, STATE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1:  The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as findings of fact as if 
said recitals were fully set forth herein. 
 
SECTION 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby find 
that it is in the best interest of the Village and its residents that the aforesaid Agreement between 
the Village and Rory Group, as set forth in Exhibit 1, be entered into and the Village President is 
hereby authorized to execute and memorialize said Agreement, subject to review and revision as 
to form by the Village Attorney.  
 
SECTION 3: That the Petitioner, upon receipt of any monies from the Village shall provide a 
complete and total accounting of all costs, payments, and invoices to the Village.     
 
SECTION 4: Any policy, resolution, or ordinance of the Village that conflicts with the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
 



SECTION 5: That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Resolution in 
pamphlet form, and this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 
approval, and publication as required by law. 
 
PASSED THIS 15th day of September, 2020. 
 
AYES:              

NAYS:              

ABSENT:              

APPROVED THIS 15th day of September, 2020. 

 

       ____________________________________ 
                      VILLAGE PRESIDENT 
ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 
                VILLAGE CLERK  



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
COUNTY OF COOK  ) SS 
COUNTY OF WILL  ) 
 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 I, KRISTIN A. THIRION, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook 

and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct 

copy of Resolution No. 2020-R-087, “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND RORY 

GROUP, LLC,” which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley 

Park on September 15, 2020.  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of  

the Village of Tinley Park this 15th day of September, 2020. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 
       KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 1 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF 

TINLEY PARK AND RORY GROUP, LLC. 



CONSULTING AGREEMENT 
 

THIS CONSULTING AGREEMNT ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and 
between Rory Group, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company (the "Consultant") and the 
Village of Tinley Park ("VOTP") as of the 15th day of September 2020. 

 
WHEREAS, "VOTP" wishes to obtain the benefits of Consultant's experience and 

know-how in connection with the operation of "VOTP"'s business; and 
 

WHEREAS, " VOT P" wishes to engage Consultant to render consulting and advisory 
services as well as introductions and referrals of new sources of business to "VOTP " on the 
terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, Consultant wishes to accept such engagement upon the terms and 

conditions set forth in this Agreement; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises made by each party in 
this Agreement and other good and valuable consideration , the receipt and sufficiency  of which  
is hereby acknowledged, "VOTP" and Consultant agree as follows: 

 
1) Consulting Services. 

 
a) "VOTP" hereby engages Consultant as a consultant to "VOTP", and Consultant hereby 

agrees to accept such engagement, upon the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement. During the Term (as hereinafter defined) of this Agreement, Consultant 
shall: (1) advise and assist "VOTP" on ways to improve its operations; (2) Monitor and 
lobby the appropriate government officials at the State and County levels; (3) Provide the 
Village of Tinley Park current reports of major legislation that would affect the Village; 
(4) Formulate a strategy to help the Village of Tinley Park advance legislation at the State 
and County levels and in the private business community; (5) Coordinate and execute the 
strategy and provide advice on governmental and private business matters; (6) the 
Consultant will pursue Capitol opportunities on behalf of "VOTP" within a new Capitol 
Bill or a re-authorization of existing Capitol; (7) coordinate with "VOTP" to advance 
local and regional agenda. (8) perform such other additional services as may be assigned 
to Consultant from time to time by "VOTP" including, but not limited to, lobbying 
activities and expansion of governmental relations. (9) provide quarterly reports on 
activities. 

 
b) In performance of its duties under this Agreement, the Consultant shall report and be 

responsible only to the "VOTP" and/or designated representative, who shall be 
responsible for monitoring Consultant's work under this Agreement. 

 
c) In the performance of its duties under this Agreement, Consultant agrees that it will not: 

 
i) negotiate or enter into any oral or written contract, agreement, or arrangement on 

behalf of, or in the name of "VOTP", or otherwise bind "VOTP", in any manner 
whatsoever; 



ii) engage in any conduct, or cause "VOTP" to engage in any conduct, which would 
result in "VOTP"'s breach or violation of any agreement, law, ordinance, or 
regulation; 

 
iii) sign any checks on behalf of or authorize any payments by "VOTP" in any manner 

whatsoever. 
 

d) "VOTP" acknowledges and agrees that so long as such work does not conflict with this 
Agreement, Consultant is free to perform work on behalf of entities other than "VOTP" 
(provided such work does not directly or indirectly compete with the project Company is 
engaged in) but shall devote sufficient time to performance of its duties under this 
Agreement as shall be reasonably necessary for it to effectively perform those duties and 
protect the interests of " VOTP". 

 

2) Term. The term of Consultant's retention and engagement under this Agreement shall begin 
on June 5, 20120 and shall end on June 4, 2021. 

 

3) Compensation. In consideration of all services to be performed by Consultant under this 
Agreement, "VOTP" agrees to pay Consultant a total fee ("Fee") of Thirty-Six Dollars 
($36,000) over a period of one year. The Fee shall be paid on a monthly basis as follows: 
Three Thousand Dollars ($3,000) by the 5th day of each month. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, at any time during the Term of this Agreement, Company, at its sole discretion 
and without prior notice to Consultant, may elect to pay the Fee in one (1) payment. 

 

4) Payment of Taxes. Consultant shall be responsible for payment of all taxes arising from 
Consultant's engagement under this Agreement, including federal and state income taxes and 
any Social Security (FICA) and/or self-employment taxes. "VOTP" will not pay any 
unemployment compensation or workers' compensation taxes or premiums on behalf of 
Consultant, or any other taxes of any nature whatsoever. 

 

5) Expenses. Without the prior written consent of "VOTP", Consultant shall be responsible for 
all out-of-pocket expenses that the Consultant incurs in performance of its duties under this 
Agreement. "VOTP" reserves the right to review all expenses incurred by the Consultant on 
"VOTP"'s behalf. If "VOTP" elects to review the expenses incurred by Consultant, 
Consultant shall provide "VOTP" with a detailed expense report within ten (10) days after 
request by "VOTP" for the same. 

 

6) Termination of Agreement. This agreement may be terminated by "VOTP" at any time for 
its convenience. In such event, Consultant should be entitled to receive all compensation due 
to it under this agreement. 

 
"VOTP" may terminate this agreement for cause, if, in "VOTP"'s reasonable judgement, 
Consultant: (1) is unwilling or unable to perform its duties or obligations pursuant to this 
Agreement, (2) Commits any dishonest, fraudulent or grossly negligent act in its capacity as 
a Consultant to "VOTP" or engages in any other conduct that casts "VOTP" in a bad light by 
association, (3) in bad faith acts in a manner materially inconsistent with the best interests of 
"VOTP", or, (4) otherwise breaches this Agreement, (any of the above acts or omissions 



herein after referred to as "Breach"), and does not cure such Breach to "VOTP'"s reasonable 
satisfaction within ten (10) days of receipt of written notices thereof from "VOTP". In the 
event this Agreement is terminated for cause, Consultant should not be entitled to any further 
compensation. 

 
7) Independent Contractor. It is understood that while this Agreement is in effect, Consultant 

is an independent contractor and not an employee of "VOTP", and that this Agreement is not 
an employment agreement. Consultant shall not be deemed an employee, agent, partner, or 
joint venture of "VOTP"; and "VOTP" shall not exercise any control or supervision with 
respect to Consultant's services, except to the extent that "VOTP" may provide 
specifications, descriptions, time schedules, and goals for projects and exercise the right to 
evaluate Consultant's work product provided under this Agreement. 

 

8) Non-Disclosure. Consultant acknowledges that in the course of the Term of this Agreement, 
Consultant will have access to confidential information of "VOTP". Acc ordingly, 
Consultant agrees that it will not at any time, without the express prior written consent of the 
President of "VOTP": 

 
a) disclose, directly or indirectly, any confidential information to anyone outside the employ 

of "VOTP", except as may be reasonably necessary or appropriate in connection with the 
performance of its duties under this Agreement; or 

 
b) use, directly or indirectly, any confidential information for the benefit of anyone other 

than "VOTP". 
 

9) Indemnification. "VOTP" shall indemnify Consultant from any and all liability, expenses, 
and costs (including reasonable attorney's fees) resulting, directly or indirectly, from any 
non-compliance or breach of the terms of this Agreement by "VOTP". Additionally, 
Consultant shall indemnify "VOTP" from any and all liability, expenses, and costs (including 
reasonable attorney's fees) resulting, directly or indirectly, from any non-compliance or 
breach of the terms of this Agreement by Consultant. 

 

10) Notices. All notices shall be given to the parties at the addresses set forth below, unless 
otherwise directed in writing. All payments by "VOTP" shall be made to Consultant at 
Consultant's address set forth below unless otherwise directed in writing. 

 
 

To Company: 
 
 
 
 

To Consultant: 

The Village of Tinley Park 
ATTN: Mr. Dave Niemeyer, Village Manager 
16250 S. Oak Park 
Tinley Park, IL 60477 

 
 

Rory Group, LLC 
ATTN: Thomas A. Manion, Jr. 
212 W. Washington St., Unit 1904 
Chicago, IL 60606 
Facsimile: (312) 726-1405 



 
 
 
 

Thomas R. Raines, Attorney at Law, LLC 
ATTN: Thomas R. Raines, Esq. 
815 W. Van Buren St., Suite 204 
Chicago, IL 60607 
Facsimile: (312) 226-1164 

 
 

All notices, requests, consents, and other communications under this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed to have been delivered on the date personally delivered or on the 
date deposited in the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, by certified mail, return 
receipt requested. 

 

11) Assignabilitv. Neither party shall assign any of its rights or obligations under this 
Agreement to any other person or entity without the prior written consent of the 
non-assigning party. This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto 
and their successors and assigns. 

 

12) Miscellaneous. 
a) This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of Consultant and "VOTP" with respect 

to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes all prior oral or written 
agreements between the parties in their entirety and may not be modified or amended in 
any way except in writing by both parties to this Agreement. All covenants, promises, 
and agreements set forth in the Agreement shall be binding, any apply to and inure to the 
benefit of the parties hereto, and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors, and assigns. 

 
b) The terms of this Agreement shall be governed and construed according to the laws of the 

State of Illinois without regard to that state's principles regarding choice of law. 
 

c) If any part or parts of this Agreement are invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the 
remaining parts shall nevertheless be valid and enforceable. 

 
d) Any party's failure to enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement shall not be 

construed to be a waiver of such provision or of the right of that party to enforce that 
provision at any time thereafter. No waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall be 
effective unless it is writing. 

 
 
 

(Signature page follows) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, execute 
this Consulting Agreement as of the date set forth herein. 

 
 

CONSULTANT: COMPANY: 
 
 
Rory Group, LLC     Village of Tinley Park 
 
By:                                             By:                                                   
Name:                                        Name:                                              
Title:                                          Title:                                                
 
 



STATE OF ILLINOIS 
COUNTY OF COOK 
COUNTY OF WILL 

) 
) ss 
) 

 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 

I, KRISTIN A. THIRION, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook 

and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct 

copy of Resolution No. 2019-R-044, "A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND RORY 

GROUP, LLC," which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley 

Park on June 4, 2019. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 4th day of June, 2019. 

 
 
 

  -' 
KR1STINATHIRIONiLLAGECLERK 














































































































































































































	090120 Spec 645 COW  Meeting Notice Modification COVID-19
	090120 Cow Agenda
	ITEM #2 - 081820 Cow Minutes - Draft
	ITEM #3 - Brixmor  Agreement
	ITEM #4 - Cannabis Business License Selection Discussion
	ITEM #5 - Demolition - 7050 171 STREET
	ITEM #6 - Clerk-Collector Memo
	ITEM #7 - Lobbyist  090120
	ITEM #8 - Social Media
	ITEM #9 - Rescource & Communication
	ITEM #10 - LED Street Lighting



